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Located on approximately two acres at the corner of Gordon Avenue and Wynnton Road, 
"Gordonido" is a two-story Greek Revival style residence begun about 1837 as the Wynnton 
area was first being settled, remodeled about 1918 when the Village of Wynnton was still 
outside the Columbus city limits, and "restored" in 1949 to more closely approximate its 
original early nineteenth .century appearance.

Essentially unchanged from the earliest building period are the six fluted Doric 
columns of wood forming a superb peristyle with hip roof, the doorway done in the 
favorite Greek Revival manner with square antae, side lights, and lighted transom on 
both floors separated by a simple balcony. These three original Greek Revival features, 
the columned peristyle, the doorways on the first and second floors, and the balcony, 
constitute the basic features of the house .around which alterations and additions 
were made in the twentieth century. ..("Altered":is .checked above only because the 
original old Dawson Place, when compared with tlie : present day Gordonido and with the 
second period, c. 1918, is^npt precisely tljej same*) For. example, in .the second period, 
the frame house was stuccoed and wings were added on both sides and to the rear of the 
house; the hip or pyramid roof was truncated by a flat deck which, in the third period, 
was crowned by a filagreed wrought-iron gallery. Also about 1918, the original Dawson 
Place entablature was embellished by a denticulated cornice, which was retained in 
1949. Another major alteration during the second period was changed in the original 
first floor window configuration to create "French doors" which were changed in 1949 
to match the original second story six-over-six windows. (The four bay window arrange­ 
ment has always been retained from the original house; changes have only taken place 
on the first.floor where-the-original six-over-nine fenestration disappeared about 1918, 
becoming in 1949 six-over-six.) In a telephone interview with James J. W. Biggers, 
FAIA, the architect in charge of the 1949 work, this consultant learned that Mr. Biggers 
was.commissioned to make the house more closely approximate the original spirit and 
architectural character of Greek Revival Dawson Place somewhat altered in the c. 1918 
remodeling. .

Inside, the original wide hall and symmetrical academic plan remain from the 
c. 1837 house. A number of c. 1918 embellishments were retained in 1949 since they 
were quite handsome additions; the Classical Revival wood and plaster work in the 
entrance hall and major formal rooms were kept; clearly the fine classical pilasters 
in the Doric order, the classical plaster moldings and the carved chimney pieces of 
the First World War era (reminiscent of the Stanford White East Wing of the White House) 
were too good to discard even though they were undoubtedly not there when the house was 
conceived. (Research does not reveal conclusively the name of the architect for the 
early twentieth century remodeling; but it seems very likely to have been T. Firth 
Lockwood, Sr., an outstanding figure in Columbus architecture during that period. 
Lockwood did many houses in the Wynnton area prior to his death on April 7, 1920.)
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Begun about 1837, extensively remodeled about 1918, and "restored" to approximate 
more closely the original conception in 1949, "Gordonido", originally called "the 
old Dawson Place", is one of the most beautifully designed and maintained of the 
Wynnton country estates. It is a vivid'demonstration of how an original Greek Revival 
house evolved to become a twen-tieth century'traditional or "period house", which many 
would rate as evenr more beautiful and architecturally significant than the original 
early nineteenth century house. In addition to its strictly architectural significance, 
the grounds, gardens, and setting are significant from the point of view of original 
community planning, early settlement, and landscape architecture as it has evolved 
in time from the nineteenth century to the present day. It is significant to the 
history of Columbus as the home of one of the early settlers of the city, John R. Dawson.

"Gordonido" stands on part of the original Coweta Reserve, a five-mile square, 
state-owned tract in land district eight, set aside for settlement by an Act of the 
Georgia General Assembly of June 9, 1825. In February 1828, the survey of this Reserve 
of land was begun by Edward Lloyd Thomas under the direction of five commissioners 
appointed by Governor John Forsyth; 1200 acres were laid out along the river as the 
town and commons of Columbus and 9240 acres were laid off as "Reserve lots" in the 
county adjacent to the town limits. The land on which "Gordonido" stands is on plot 
number 60 of that original survey. The land's original purchaser was William L. Wynn 
in April 1833. Wynn gave his name to the settlement which developed around his original 
60 acre purchase and to the road on which both his house, at 1240 Wynnton Road, and 
"Gordonido", at 1420 Wynnton Road, stand. The Village of Wynnton remained outside of 
the city limits of Columbus in Muscogee County until 1925, developing as the town's 
finest suburban neighborhood.

The elevation of Wynnton is higher than the plain on which Columbus was laid out 
and "Wynn's Hill" where William Wynn built his house as a well-known historic geo­ 
graphical feature of the area. (The Wynn House at 1240 Wynnton Road, now the Christian 
Fellowship Association, was entered on the National Register in 1972.) Wynn sold 
John R. Dawson 5 1/8 acres in June 1837. The deed conveyed:

All that tract or parcel of land, lying and being in the County of 
Muscogee, State of Georgia, and lying and being in the reserve in 
said County made by the State of Georgia, and attached to the City 
of Columbus, and being designated as part of Number 60 in the sur­ 
vey of said reserve, commencing at the corner of the lot upon which 
the said William L. Wynn now lives...containing 5-1/8 acres, it 
being the lot on which the said Dawson now resides.
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The present day grounds of "Gordonido", including the large old trees and shrubs 
and extensive gardens, are a superb accumulation constituting one of the finest 
traditional landscape architecture displays in Georgia.

The present appearance of house and grounds in all features, from Wynnton Road 
to the rear curb on 10th Street, is that of a twentieth century "period house" of the 
most convincing nature, since the composition began as an early nineteenth century 
Greek Revival Wynnton estate. Present appearance results from a continuity of 
architectural taste, traditions, and features from the antebellum period until the 
present mofient. (Such places used to be called "Southern Colonial Mansions" and, 
during its second period when the Frederick Barrett Gordons named it "Gordonido", it 
was no doubt so described.)

The attached three photographs from 1978, c. 1918, and c. 1870 (showing the house 
as originally conceived about 1840) may be studied for comparison.
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Dawson, of course, may or may not have already built the columned structure which 
became "Gordonido" when the Frederick Gordon's purchased the property in 1913, but he 
was probably in process of construction when Wynn sold him the acreage. Therefore, 
c. 1837 seems an accurate approximate original date.

John R. Dawson was a supply merchant for planters, a member of the firm of Hill 
and Dawson. He was the son of George Dawson who moved from Maryland to Georgia. John 
Dawson 1 s brother, William, was an attorney and served in the United States Senate. 
Dawson died on October 29, 1852, and the house remained in the possession of his 
family until it was purchased by Mrs. Sallie L. Gilbert in 1880. (A warranty deed from 
Mrs. Gilbert to Mr. J. T. Willis dated October 1885 refers to the "land and house" 
as being the "old Dawson place" in the "Village of Wynnton".)

In 1913, Rosa Crook Gordon, Mrs. Frederick Barrett Gordon, purchased the property 
which, by that time, was the size shown on the current city tax map. Sometime soon 
after that purchase, the old house was remodeled to bring it up to contemporary 
standards and along basically Classical Revival stylistic lines retaining much of its 
original Greek Revival character. Wings were added on either side and to the rear; 
the house was stuccoed; and french windows were added to the first floor front. Archi­ 
tectural embellishments were also made inside to bring the house closer to early 
twentieth century Classical Revival taste. The architect was probably T. Firth 
Lockwood, Sr. (1868-1920) who did many residences in the fashionable Wynnton suburb. 
The Gordons renamed the house "Gordonido" meaning, in Spanish, Gordon's nest or 
residence. Mr. Gordon was a native of Massachusetts who became a leader of the Columbus 
textile industry. He was president of the Columbus Manufacturing Company. His wife, 
Rosa Crook Martin Gordon, an Alabama native, founded the Woman's Club of Columbus 
(which is located across Wynnton Road from "Gordonido"). The Gordons had two children, 
one of whom, Margaret, Mrs. Walter Alan Richards, inherited the house. In 1949, Mrs. 
Richards commissioned James J. W. Biggers, FAIA, of Columbus to restore the house to 
approximate its earliest original condition, at the time of John R. Dawson, retaining 
the best features of the remodeling commissioned by her parents. A copy of the plans 
for this work survive and are dated March 24, 1949. Mr. Biggers has been one of the 
leading architects in Columbus for half a century, is especially praised for his 
traditional, "period" residential work, and is a Fellow of the American Institute of 
Architects. The present owners of "Gordonido" are Mr. and Mrs. J. W. Feighner. Mr- 
Feighner is President of the Tom Houston Company and a Vice President of General Mills 
of which Tom Huston is a subsidiary. To quote a brochure distributed by Historic 
Columbus Foundation, Inc.:

Gordonido is exquisitely kept and one of the city's most beautiful 
homes. It is recognized as one of Columbus' most valued antebellum 
structures.
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